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The Bethel Presbyterian Church, facing southwest on a grassy knoll on
the east side of Route 552 north of Alcorn and approximately three miles
from the Mississippi River shore, is representative of the classical symmetry
and gravity expressed in the Greek Revival style. Anchoring the pedimented,
three-bay facade of the rectangular, gable-roofed structure is a prominent,
square central tower. The two stories of the latter are divided by a cornice
and frieze which continue across the facade and around the remaining elevations.
The graceful solidity of the pile is enhanced by Doric order pilasters with
open panels that fortify the corners of the sanctuary and the tower and artic-
ulate the three bays of the northwest and southwest elevations. The water
table is punctuated with original cast-iron ventilators of an indented rect-
angular form with lozenge-patterned piercing and a decorative border in a
Greek key design (four extant on the northwest elevation and two on the south-
east). Originally, the brick exterior walls were stuccoed and scored to re-
semble ashlar masonry of an unknown color. At some point the stucco finish
was washed with a brick color and later painted gray.

Hood molds surmount the windows and entrance way of the church, lending a
Gothicizing effect to the classicism of the overall composition. Apparently
none of the nine-over-nine, double-sash windows are original, although they fit
the original openings and are probably of the same configuration as the old
ones. In the early twentieth century, when the structure was used as a public
school, the windows on the northwest and southeast elevations were extended
upward to interrupt the cornice line, thus providing more 1light for the interior.
The exterior three-panel, double-leaf doors with fixed fourth panel above
appear to be original, though the hardware has been replaced.

The interior of the building is without significant decorative detail.
The two vestibule windows have the only remaining wooden sills. Double-leaf,
four-panel doors, probably dating from the late nineteenth century, lead from
the vestibule into the sanctuary, which contains twelve apparently original
wooden pews with scrolled arms and single-plank sides and backs. Originally,
a straight stair along the southwest wall of the sanctuary near the entrance
gave access to a slave gallery that spanned the rear.

On November 6, 1943, the church was struck by a tornado, which caused severe
damage to the exterior walls and interior finish, as well as the destruction of
an octagonal spire presumably not contemporary with the construction of the
building. The southeast and northeast (rear) elevations were rebuilt without
the scored and stucco finish, and every effort was made to restore the original
configuration of the windows on the southeast and northwest sides. When the
interior of the building was reconstructed, a concrete floor was laid, concrete
was applied over the brick walls, and simple wooden molding was placed around
the ceiling of flush wooden planks laid lengthwise. The gallery was not re-
built. Recently the exterior of the building was painted white and the water
table black.

- A well at the north corner of the building is constructed of brick, with
the wellhead stuccoed and extending about three feet above ground.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Organization of the Bethel Presbyterian Church, fourteen miles southwest of
the town of Port Gibson, Mississippi, marked an important step in the expansion
of Presbyterianism into the 01d Southwest during the first half of the nineteenth
century. Bethel Church also brought concomitant educational and sociological
benefits to its immediate area. The architectural significance of the structure
Ties in its application of classical detail to a form small in scale yet striking
in the context of its rural setting.

Before construction of the present church, Presbyterians in the vicinity were
served by the Bayou Pierre Church, an 1807 log building near Port Gibson and "The
Little Church down Hubbard's Lane," a small building located at the rear of the
Hubbard and Batchelor plantations, approximately three miles east of the town of
Rodney. By 1824 a block of families composed of church members from both con-
gregations decided to organize a separate church closer to their homes. On Janu-
ary 26, 1828, the Mississippi legislature granted a charter to the group, called
the "Presbyterian Congregation on Bethel," and William Young, Lewellin Price,
John Magruder, and Smith C. Daniell were named as trustees. The church was built
between 1828 and 1830 on a one-and-one-half-acre site donated by Lewellin Price
and was served by the Reverend Zebulon Butler, pastor also of the First Presby-
terian Church of Port Gibson.

The Bethel congregation assumed an active role in promoting educational op-
portunities for the region, and, on January 14, 1830, hosted a meeting of the Edu-
cation Society, formed to establish a college under the care of the Presbyterian
Church. In April, 1830, the Presbytery of Mississippi received and approved the
proposal to open the school, to be known as Oakland College, and appointed Dr.
Jeremiah Chamberlain as president. Classes were held at Bethel Church until con-
struction of a building on a site two miles south, with funds contributed by the
Bethel congregation. For nearly three decades, Oakland College flourished, attain-
ing an excellent reputation throughout the South, but the coming of the Civil War
forced the closing of the school and the suspension of services at Bethel Church.
The Oakland College Church was organized in 1860, serving both the college community
and the Bethel congregation until 1871. In 1879 the Oakland College property was
sold to the state of Mississippi, and the trustees reorganized the college as Cham-
berlain-Hunt Academy (a secondary school) in Port Gibson. Services were resumed
at Bethel Church in 1884,
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8 - SIGNIFICANCE

The building was used as a public school during the early part of the twentieth
century, forcing major interior alterations. Damages from a tornado in 1943 resulted
in the partial rebuilding and restoration of the sanctuary. Currently, services are
conducted at the church once a month, with the Reverend David Daniels of the Port
Gibson First Presbyterian Church officiating.
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10 - GEOGRAPHICAL DATA (Verbal Boundary Description)

9 degrees east along said college boundary 3 chains 96 1inks to a stake whence
a small elm tree bears south 52 degrees west 20 1inks said stake being the
southwest corner of Isaac Bogart's lot. Thence south 50 degrees east along
the southwestern boundary of Isaac Bogart's lot 6 chains 12 1inks to a stake
in the middle of the Rodney road, whence a gum bears north 50 degrees west

48 1inks thence south 60 degrees west keeping in the middle of the Rodney road
3 chains 64 links to a stake. Thence north 50 degrees west along the north-
eastern boundary of Matthew Bolls' lot 3 chains to the place of beginning.
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